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The first building erected for Lynnbraook Elementary

School in 1940  is a small, unpretentious one-story brick
structure which closely resembles its original appearance.
It stands, as it stood in 1940, as a solidly constructed
brick school in a park-like setting of black and white oak,
hickoiry, walnut and tulip poplars trees in east Bethesda.

Lynnbrook Elementary 5School (1940) is ordered by a

symmetric disposition in the Greek Cross plan. This
edifice iz simple with a modern look characteristic of
the more severe residual "Deco" design of the 1940s. i
has a baxy, machine—like appearance with flat brick
walls {in some places unbroken by windows, etc.}; a
amooth, uninterrupted flat roofline; large horizontally
grouped windowss and few details. The brick walls,
projecting brick panels, articulated carners and entrances
£ endde visual textwre and the building’s principal
orriamentation. The most outstanding feature is the

recsssed  light-hued main entrance, crisply delineated and
decorated with only four simple incised low relief sguares
i & lime_on the lintel. This pattern is also seen on
the rear facade between the two back doors (facing the
eecond building of Lynnbrook Elementary School, 1942-8).

The interior plan is also symmetric. A small

" entrance hall leads into & center space at the crassing
{probably designed as an all purpose-assembly raom,
possibly with a stage). Originally, this space was
flanked by four classrooms. After the completion aof
the second building, this structure was used for the
vounger children. The 1%970s brought & decline in the
alementary sthool populatdon.i. 0By thie: mid-1970s, this
building was used for area offices. Today, it is leased

fram the Montgomery County Public Schools to a day care
center.

Note: Ta date, the original plans, blueprints and
documentation of this building have not been found.
However, some information on it can be discermed from
@examining the blueprints of the second building of the
schaool (Construction Division. Montgomery County Fublic
Schools, Rockvile).
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The main (second) building of Lynnbrook Elementary
School  in Bethesda - (what is referred to as east Bethesda)
has experienced a transformation since its beginnings in
1942, Modern additions have dramatically changed the
style and dimensions ©f the Lynnbrook of the 1940s.
Despite - the fact that its early character has: been masked,
what remains of the building's original (1940s) appearances
is important.

Fecords indicate that there wers two main building
campaigns  in the 19408 to creats a second building $
the school. This resulted in the completion of a
buildimg in 1942 and & major addition to it in  1948.
Eoth buildings stood {and still stand) in & park-like
setting of black and white oak, hickory, walnut and tulip
poplars trees.

During the sarly 1940s, soon after the completion of
the +irst building of Lynnbrook (1240}, Howard Wright
_Butler . and Eatherine . Cutler were commissiongtd bw the Board
aed of Education to design a much needed second building for
' Lynnbrook  Elementary School. vawasuplaceduanwaxis with
and 365" from the exisiting building (19403 it was
situated 1157 from the property line along Lypnbrogk Avenue
and S0*“fFom the property line along Maple Avenue.

Early plans dated July 25, 1241 reveal that the
Cutlers® school was a roughly rectangulars (271" ot ,
2% foot tal Fi°LonEhetdFy DUFHETE - T helpetd 268% the scale
for the 1944-8 addition. . The building’s basement is 137
and its First {and main) floor 12°. Originally, its
chimney stack projected 4° ahaove the roofling ,and a 28°
stairhall with main entry projected 9° on the west
elevation.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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FHYSICAL DESCRIPTION {CONTINUED)

Thie building’ = 1oy side LTS north—south,
perpendl cul ar to  Lynnbrook Avenue. As previously
mentiaoned, the edifice was placed on axdis with the existing
building. Its main door, located on its south side, was
oriented towsard the other buillding.

Due to World War I1, there wers shortages of
materials and & need to restrict costs. This helps to
aiplain the extreme simplicity the Cutlers gave to this
building. This brick building is wtilitarian, styvisless
arnd  without ormnamentation save a cornice and  some  brick
COUr SE85 . There were relatively few windows suceplt for on

the esast slevation where there were sight large windows on
the First Floor and six windows, onse coal door and tao

additional doors on the basement level. The stairhall
saction of bthe sast slevation included the main door  with
gmall  window above, arnd the main part of the sastern
@levabion rad two windows flanking & door on the bassment
level . The north elevation had onsg first floor  door
reached by a welded pipe rail. The west slevation  had

Just two windows on bthe first F1oor, three on the basemsnt
Tavel and one on each floor of thse stairhall.

The wtreme tresatment of wall surfaces  and f e
windows was also dus to the projschbed growbbh of this
building. The Dutlers®™ site plan proposed & fubturs
addition along the west elevation. This addition wontl ol
enclose the stairhall and most of  the west slesvation.
Obviously, the Cutlers designed the bullding o 19412
{including its fenestration pattern)  with the addition

in mind.

The first floar vestibule of the stairhall led to the

classroons. On  the First floor were two classrooms
{each room was 207 wide X 45" long (317 for the main rooms
arnd 147 for project work spacel. Each classroom had its
e boys” arnd girls® closak room and bathroom. The two
ClAassroons  wers divided by a folding partition, which

allowed +or the oreation of o;ne largs asssmbhly room.
It appears that the attractive wood pansl doors which  le=ad
to each of the classrooms are original. They are the cnly
ones of their gquality and design {(diamond pattsrn wood
panel) in the building today.

The basement level housed the boiler room, coal room

and two work spaces. Thers was no cafeteria because mosth
pupils went home to sat. Concrete was used Ffor the
building’ s bass, soms flooring in the lowsr steirhall and
in other locations. The esarly plans alsc caelled for
asphallt tile +loors, acoustical plaster ocsilings, steel
sash windows, vert louvre soresned inside, cork bulletin
boards, slate blackboards, brick and cinderblocks, wood

panel doors and some nice detailing.
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FHYSICAL DESCRIFTION ‘ C(COMTINUED)

The west addition, which provided the principal
facade of the edifice, was erected in 19446-1948. It was
cesigned by Frank Froctor to complete the Cutlers®
building. Its sastern side abuts the west slevation of
the Cutlers® building and  continusd the building
southward toward the 1940 structure. Im kesping with the

original structuwe, the 1948 addition is laterally sxtended
with a north-south orientation.

Fespectful of the Cutlers® design,. the west addition
is also & one-story edifice with basement. Dus to  the
slope of +the site, the basement has many windows which
provide ample natuwral light. From the front, the building
appEars &s a  long. low-riding, horizontally extendesd
structurs. Its principal facade f{(west elevation) i
laterally extended with & rmnorth-south orientation: it is
parpendicul ar o Lynnbrook Avenus.

This edifice iz simple with a moderm look for  the

period. Lynnbrook {15948) iz a brick sedifice with flat
walls, s ftlat roof, lTargs windows (horizontally groupsd)
arng few  details (white courses?. Light-hused acocents

{CouUrsess) angd  the concrete Dase oreate & visual contrast
to the dominant red brick.

Im contrast to the non-descript two room building by
the Dutlers, this building has 8 stvle. It is  #Art Deco.
The feature which clearly defines its style is the main
entrances. Art Deco buildings wers often highly
theatrical. Their entrances were freguently made into
dramatic points of visual interest. Im Lynnbrook, the
principal portal (facing Lynnbrook Drive arid
asymmetrically located left of center? ig constructed of
smooth off-white stone. It is recessed or set back
in fouw tiers to resemble & proscenium, This gives the
entrance a stage-like presence. It is & crisply delineated
architectural +eatures which coreates =2 coloristic and
testural foil to the brick walls.

In addition, thes stone swrounding and defining the
toor  rises above the flat roofline, creating the stepped
character thalt animates many Art Deco buildings. At -
Deco design was shaped by many influences, including exotic
and  ancient architecture from the Middle East. Ziggarul
(ancient Mesopotami &) and stepped pyramid {arncient
Egyptian? Fforms were used for skvscrapers, skylines and
decorative motifs. At lymnbrook,  this devise makes the
antrance a focal point of the desiogn which asserts  the
presence of the door and coreates & bresb in the otherwlse
flat, continuous  roofline. Unfortunately, the main
entrance has been masked by a modesrn addition.
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The second building at Lynnbrook Elementary School,
which was developed betwsen 1942 and 1948 is Art Deco  in

style. Az such,; it exemplifies the use of a completel v
modern  (20th century) style of architecture for a school
building in Montgomery County. This elementary school

makes no reference to classical architecture and bears o
resemblance to the Georgian-style educational buildings of
the 19320z, such as Bethesda-Chevy Chase High School (19325

and Montgomery Blair High School {(1935) ., It is an

¥ . important  architectural monument because it shows the
P complete acceptance of & stvle without  historical
' -AEOLAANARDE IO 3, Fraditional building-type:  the school.

‘ The use of the Art Deco style was by no means
CopFogkessive since the style had developed during the 1920s.
bwever, it was in keeping with the persistence of the

Y general interest in Art “Deco BVin%&iPEd*-fdesign.
Interestingly, local fascination for this style was
probably at an all time high.®t" - Faul Cret’s Bethe®dh Naval
Hospital, an &rt Deco shYscraper, was completed in 1941,
Then and now, it standes as one of the great monuments of
the Washington metropolitan area. Its presence obviously
influenced architects working in Montgomery County during
the 1940sg, Froctor®s design for Lynnbrook testifies to
this.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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The school has alwave plaved an important role in its
community, which  has taken great interest in  Lynnbrook.

Im +act, it was a neighborhood committes that mamed the
school . The elementary school was named atter the
streat, Lynnbrook Avenue, which defines its front property
line. The early history of the school is  synonvmous
with its First principal, Flsie Boslev, who o served
Lvnnbrook from 1940 to 1957, Durimg Worlad War 11, Bosley

was  the principal of both Lynnbrook and Clara PRarton.
Bosley was an important prime-mover, advocating the growbh
and improvement of the school.

The sscond budlding (1942)  was used for the upper

grades of the elementary school. Even before the second
building was completed, it was clear that there was still
rnot enough room for this growing school. Bosley waroesd
the  Board of Education and SBuperintendant Edwin W, Eroome
to buwild on to the school. She smphasized the growing

student population of sast Hethesda. Im a lstter dai
December 18, 1944, Bosley, with the president of the P.T.5.
and Chairmarn of the Building Commitites, described the nesds
wf  the school, which incloaded four new ola
cateteria in ths bassmsnt, a princiapal’s offics, & health
il wlucd i1 a kitchen, library, activities room and teachers’
OO, anc more.,

B COME, &

By 1944, there were 271 children and 12 teachers  at

Lynnbrook  Elementary School. Eventual 1y, the idea of
completing the 1942 building with an  addition W
accapted, In 1944, the School Board purchased five more
acres (mainly for the plavground). That vyear, the F.T.A.

met  with architect Frank Proctor, who was to desiaon  the
addition for the upper orades.

Construction Was =l ow becauss of zhortages,
particularly a shortage of steel. Im Jurne, the roof was
not wvet  Ffinished. Around Decembesr 1, the plumbsrs,
plasterers and electricians started their work. The
building was completed in February of 1948 and  dedicated
two month  later in April. Incised above the main

entrance was the name of the school.

The post-war era, sapecially the 1%9&40s, brought &

population surge Subsegquent additions have continued
the building southward, closer to the 1940 edifice.
Unfortunatsly, the slegant Art Deco front enbrance, the

most outstanding featuwre of the school was destroved wh
modern wing for the library and administrative ssrvices was
built. The 1970z signalled a decline in enrollment. In

1975, some rooms wers used as a davy cars center.

1]
3
)




. IEiIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES M. 3547
S Central Records, Montgomery County Public Schools;
Construction Division, Montgomery County Schools;
also see: K. Alexis' manuscript (1988) on the architectural
: ‘ history of Montgomery County's P@b&&agﬁgh@ﬁ%;@&%mag¢&hpﬂrir;t
o half of the 20th century (Montgomery County Hij 'i¢ Preserva-
tion Commissjion & Maryland Historic Trust) ; AIR Archives;

CONTINUE. ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY -

SWIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA -
. ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY lQJéQé E le‘ 1 l)] o(‘.k 1 1-31 A 101’2 51.1

building only (not entire property) o
Propertg line on Maple to 1940 buildings 510' (includes
4942-8 building); property line on Lynnbrook to ,

black top play area (with building): roughly 150!

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Lynnbrook Avenue, Maple Avenue, Rosedale Avenue, end Newdale;

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

~  [EIFORM PREPARED BY

NéMHij KARIN M.E. ALEXIS, PH.D., ART & ARCHITEGTURAL HISTORY
ORGANIZATION - ' DATE )
JUNE 1988
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE .
' 24449 Villanova Drive 280-1107
CITY OR TOWN : ’ STATE
Vienns, Virginia , 22180

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
PN (301) 267-1438

rs. 1908




